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DECEMBER 20, 2013
STATE OF MONTANA

INVITATION FOR BID ADDENDUM

IFB NO. 14-2854A
TO BE OPENED: JANUARY 6, 2014
TITLE: FISH, WILDLIFE AND PARKS AIRCRAFT MAINTENANCE
ADDENDUM NO. 3
To All Bidders:

Attached are written questions received in response to this IFB.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this IFB.

All other terms of the subject "Invitation for Bid" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The bidder for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the bid opening or the bid may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Jeannie Lake
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for IFB #14-2854A  

	1. 
	1
	Cover Page
	Q:  COVER PAGE, Page 1 ,Who will open and read bids? 

Will it take place at 2:00 p.m., 12/5/13 in Room 165, Mitchell Building, 125 North Roberts Street, Helena, Montana?, If not, where and when will bids be opened and read?

A:  The Contracts Officer will read the bids at 2:00 p.m. MST on the due date.  This address is correct as it is stated in the IFB.

	2. 
	7
	1
	Q:  SECTION 1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Page 7, Section 1.6.1  Basis for Award

Who will determine the lowest cost? 

A:  Please refer to Section 4.5.1, Awards.  All bidders who meet specifications will be awarded a contract.

	3. 
	7
	1
	Q:  Are inspections at a certain quantity of hours or lowest cost per hour for indefinite number of hours? 

A:  Not applicable.

	4. 
	7
	1
	Q:  Will FWP be providing all or any parts for aircraft maintenance?

A:  FWP may or may not supply parts for aircraft maintenance.  This will be specified at the time the repair is scheduled.

	5. 
	7
	1
	Q:  What quality of parts will be required or allowed (i.e. factory new, new surplus, overhauled, serviceable or as removed)? These categories can result in vastly different prices (costs). Will lowest cost be determined for each maintenance service using the same guidelines? Will these guidelines also be used if a provider other than a contract award winner is used for any service?

A:   Please refer to Section 4.5.1, Awards.  All bidders who meet specifications will be awarded a contract.   This will be specified at the time the repair is scheduled.

	6. 
	8
	2
	Q: (Also pertains to Page 13, 4.2 Agency Responsibilities, 2nd Bullet)

Will FWP pilots be qualified, hired and insured for the type of aircraft that he or she is performing run- ups and test flights for? 

A:   Yes.

	7. 
	8
	2
	Q: Will a list of qualified pilots with their ratings be furnished to contractors for test flights and run-ups?

A:  Will be provided upon request after award and prior to any requested service.

	8. 
	8
	2
	Q: Will FWP pilots be insured and will FWP provide named insurance for the contractor employees who have to fly with them on test flights?

A:   Will be provided upon request after award and prior to any requested service.

	9. 
	8
	2
	Q: When pilots and/or qualifications change will a new list or updates be provided? 

A:   Yes, upon request.

	10. 
	8
	2
	Q: Is contractor obligated to allow only a qualified, employee FWP pilot do run-ups and test flights? 

A:   Yes.

	11. 
	8
	2
	Q: Or is anyone the chief pilot designates, regardless of qualifications or experience acceptable?

If not a qualified employee, will State of MT/FWP provide them with adequate insurance to cover any damage they may cause contractor, employees, facilities and/or State property? 

A:  See page 8, Section 2.  Only qualified employees or Contractors will be authorized.

	12. 
	8
	2
	Q: Does the State expect the contractor to provide insurance for non-employee or non-qualified pilots under contractor’s insurance? (Reference also Page 9, Section 3.4 Required Insurance)

A:   This is not applicable, as only qualified employees and pilots will be utilized.

	13. 
	9
	3
	Q: Page 9, 3.0  Purchasing Card, Please clarify purchasing card program: Must bidders accept credit cards to be “qualified bidders” or receive a contract under this IFB? 

A: No.
Q: Will non-contractor service providers be required to accept credit cards?

A: Refer to answer above.
Q: Does it include use of personal credit cards? 

A: Only state credit cards are authorized for state business, with very few exceptions.
Q: If personal credit cards are used how will purchases be tracked on the State of MT web site (under Governor’s Transparency in Government, State of Montana Checkbook)? Employee reimbursements do not appear on the Checkbook and therefore circumvent “Transparency in Government”. 

A: Only state credit cards are authorized for state business, with very few exceptions.
Q: If personal credit cards are used, who will the credit card rewards program benefits be issued to? 

A: Only State credit cards are authorized for state business, with very few exceptions..
Q: Is it a taxable benefit to the respective employee if personal credit card benefits are not turned over to the State?

A: Personal cards will not be used unless in an emergency situation.
Q: Is there a limit to how much can be charged on a purchase card/credit card at any one time, or in total (i.e. breaking up charges over multiple days to avoid hitting a daily or per charge maximum)?
A: No minimum or maximum.
Q: Can the contractor charge FWP the credit card fees? For purchases of thousands of dollars, this can be a significant cost. 

A: The fees can be charged as long as they follow the Federal Regulations regarding surcharges.  FWP must be notified prior to charging a fee.

Q: In order to adequately assess/incorporate cost, who is the credit card provider (MC, VISA, AmEx, etc.)?

A: Visa.

	14. 
	9
	3.1
	Q: Page 9, 3.1  Nonexclusive Contract

“Fish, Wildlife and Parks may obtain this product/service from sources other than the contract holder(s) as long as they comply with Title 18, MCA, and their delegation agreement.”

Please define “nonexclusive contract” and “Title 18, MCA” as applied to this IFB. 

What delegation agreement is FWP under?

A:   Please refer to the following website for reference to the State of Montana procurement laws and policies: http://gsd.mt.gov/default.mcpx. This document is available for inspection at the State Procurement Bureau office.
Q: If no contract winner may be used, what is the benefit to any contractor to respond to this IFB? 

A:  Any contractor awarded a contract from this IFB, may be used for aircraft maintenance as needed statewide.
Q: All the burdens of these requirements are on the bidder, yet no benefit to ANY or ALL bid winners may be forthcoming since FWP can utilize some other service provider who did not win this bid, or even submit a bid. Based on this IFB, is this a correct understanding?

A:  FWP may use any contracted vendor for aircraft maintenance under this contract. FWP may schedule services outside or obtain services according to Title 18 MCA.

	15. 
	9
	3.2
	Q: Page 9, 3.2  Meetings

Who is/are the State personnel or designated representatives that the contractor is required to meet with?  Please supply number of people and names of all.  If they change will contractor be notified in advance as is required of contractors?

A:  Meetings may be held with any employee of the State if needed.  Names will not be provided as part of the contract.  A contract liaison will be identified at the time of award.

	16. 
	9
	3.3
	Q: Page 9, 3.3  Compliance with Workers’ Compensation Act

Will proof of conformance be required every time FWP utilizes a contractor or non-contractor provider? 

A:   No.
Q:
Who provides Workers’ Compensation Insurance for non-employee pilots utilized by FWP?

A:   Not applicable.

	17. 
	9
	3.4
	Q: Page 9, 3.4  Required Insurance

Will proof of conformance be required every time FWP utilizes a contractor or non-contractor provider?

A:  No.
Q:
Who provides Liability Insurance for non-employee pilots utilized by FWP?

A:   Not applicable.

	18. 
	10
	3.4.4
	Q: Page 10, 3.4.4  Specific Requirements for Automobile Liability

Why is this in the IFB? 

A: This is only needed if for some reason FWP rides in a contractor’s vehicle.
Q: If State FWP will deliver aircraft to contractor maintenance facility, why is this needed? 

A: This is only needed if for some reason FWP rides in a contractor’s vehicle.
Q: Will all State/FWP Autos have the same coverage, and list the contractors and employees as additional insured’s?
A: No, contractors cannot ride in FWP vehicles.

	19. 
	11
	3.5
	Q: Page 11, 3.5 Transition Assistance. Since FWP anticipates multiple award winners and may utilize providers other than award winners, who exactly is responsible for transition assistance if needed? 

A: Each awarded contract will have the transition assistance in their respective contracts.  
Q: How is transition assistance provider determined?

A: Multiple contracts will be awarded, and any contractor may be requested to provide transition assistance. 

	20. 
	12
	4
	Q: SECTION 4: SPECIFICATIONS AND PRICING SCHEDULE

Page 12, Vendor Agrees, 1st Bullet

Please define “regularly scheduled” inspections. 

Is this a factory or FAA approved schedule or is it at the convenience of FWP?

A: Regularly Scheduled Maintenance. The maintenance that may be requested by FWP could include: annual inspections as outlined in FAR part 43 Appendix D, factory recommended inspections, inspections outlined in the Interagency Committee for Aviation Policy (ICAP) applicable to the OH-58 Helicopters.  These aircraft will be expected to be returned to service under the appropriate inspection program as requested by FWP Aircraft Unit at the time of service.  FAA AC 43.13-1B, Acceptable Methods, Techniques, and Practices – Aircraft Inspection and Repair, is an example of an acceptable standard for the inspection and repair of non-pressurized aircraft when there are no manufacturer repair or maintenance instructions.  FAA AC 43.13-2A, Acceptable Methods, Techniques and Practices – Aircraft Alterations, contains acceptable methods for alteration of non-pressurized aircraft when there are no manufacturer repair or maintenance instructions.

	21. 
	12
	4
	Q: Page 12, Vendor Agrees, 3rd Bullet

Is replacement of time-life parts a factory or FAA approved schedule or is it at the convenience of FWP? Who will be responsible to track time/life and replacement parts?

A:   Replacement of Time life parts will be on a factory approved schedule.
Q: Who will order time/life and replacement parts?

A:   FWP.
Q: If FWP purchases/provides any parts, will they also provide warranty and insurance?

A: This will be determined at the time of service as to the most effective way of acquiring parts. The tracking of Time life parts will be the responsibility of  FWP and replacement of Time Life parts will be according to that tracking program.  Any parts supplied by FWP will be the responsibility of FWP for airworthiness and warranty.

Q: Page 12, Types of Aircraft

Please define “government public use” aircraft as it pertains to maintenance requirements of these aircraft, type of inspections, frequency of inspections and quality of parts to be installed.

A: According to Helena Area FSDO FAA- FWP does not fall under any FAA oversight or FAA jurisdiction due to the government "public use" status that FWP falls under. However, FWP maintains the aircraft that have valid Airworthiness Certificates in compliance with the FAA standards to retain their existing Airworthiness Certificates. 

Q: Page 12, Types of Aircraft, All Bullets

What is the total number of aircraft that is covered in this IFB? Please include N numbers and serial numbers for each make/model.

A: Currently FWP owns and operates eight aircraft -There is no total number of aircraft in this IFB- and no guarantee as to which aircraft will require maintenance at any time:

The current fleet of aircraft include-assignments of these aircraft and their locations are subject to change- 

N4644Y Super Cub- SN 18-8945

N6110A Super Cub- SN18-8009050

N8862Y Super Cub- SN18-7409026

N4465Y Partenavia- SN-360-26/tc

N6690 OH-58 Helicopter- SN68-16690

N7120- OH-58 Helicopter- SN 71-20712

N693 OH-58 Helicopter- SN71-20693

N1604Z Hughs 500 Helicopter- SN0341E

Q: Page 12, Types of Aircraft, Last statement

Please define “types of inspections” that may be required during the term of the contract. 

A:  See page 12, Section 4.1, second bullet.
Q: Page 12, 4.1 Contractor Requirements, 2nd Bullet. Which aircraft will be maintained under government public use and which will be maintained with the ICAP program or other program(s)? 

A: The only aircraft that fall under the ICAP program are the OH-58 Helicopters the others will be maintained per manufacturer’s recommendations.

Q: Are all programs FAA approved programs? 

A: Not applicable.
Q: Will contractor be notified before a quote request of all outstanding ADs, SBs, time/life items, etc. since they will have no prior indication of what is due?

A:   Yes.
Q: Has a list of aircraft to be maintained under government public use been submitted to the FAA?

A: Not applicable.
Q: Page 12, 4.1 Contractor Requirements, 7th Bullet. Regarding subcontracting: Is this on a per part, per service or per contract basis? 

A:  As stated in IFB.
Q: Will this be in writing and who will maintain the program? 

A:  At the discretion of the FWP chief pilot.
Q: If use of a subcontractor is approved, will any subsequent contractor be required to provide warranty? 

A:  See page 18, number 8.
Q: How will disputes regarding warranty work be resolved with multiple contractors and non-contract providers? 

A:   See page 21, Section 16.
Q: If the chief pilot requests a particular subcontractor that is not the contractor’s choice, who warrants and insures the work?

A: See page 18, number 8.
Q: Page 13, 4.1  Contractor Requirements, 10th  Bullet

Who does the service provider bill when damages to FWP aircraft are caused by negligence on the part of a FWP employee or designate - the employee/designate or will FWP cover those damages?

A: This will be resolved on a case-by-case basis.
Q: Is the employee/designate required to immediately notify FWP management of any damage caused by them, as required of contractors?

A:   Not applicable.
Q: Page 13, 4.1  Contractor Requirements, 11th  Bullet. Where will the aircraft be based?

A: It varies and is subject to change, aircraft will be based statewide.
Q: Page 13. 4.1  Contractor Requirements, 13th Bullet. Regarding records/logbooks: 

Will FWP employees or representatives be required to track, provide and enter in the aircraft logs, all preventative maintenance, trouble shooting, inspections, maintenance and parts installed by them? 

A: See page 13, Section 4.1, bullet 13, as stated.
Q: Will above parts have traceability? 

A: Yes.
Q: How will records of FWP employee maintenance be kept and by whom? 

A: The FWP aircraft unit.

Q: Who insures and warrants FWP employee maintenance? 

A: FWP.
Q: Are test flights by a qualified FWP pilot guaranteed prior to return to service?

A: Test flight by FWP pilots are not guaranteed prior to return to service as this is not an acceptable industry standard for all maintenance. Test flights, when required, will be conducted by FWP qualified pilots.
Q: Page 13, 4.1  Contractor Requirements, 14th Bullet

Will FWP give written advance notice of when maintenance is to be performed? 

A: No.
Q: What is the time line on advance notice? 

A: No advance notice is guaranteed.
Q: If not provided advance notice, what is the lead time given to service providers to provide a quote and what information will be given?

A: As much lead time as possible and any pertinent information to the maintenance requested.

Q: The IFB indicates that if the chief pilot doesn’t give written permission for a backordered part, the contractor will be responsible for a replacement aircraft. What if the chief pilot wants to use a part determined to be un-fit for use by the contractor - doesn’t that place the contractor in the position of choosing either a sub-par part or paying for aircraft rental? This does not seem reasonable or prudent.

A: FWP will not require an unfit part to be installed.
Q:  After FWP awards a maintenance job to a contract provider, can the contractor bill FWP for failure of FWP to show up, arrive late or cancel?
A:  No. 

Q: Page 13, 4.2 Agency Responsibilities, 5th Bullet And Appendix B Contractor Evaluation

Does FWP have a qualified Director of Maintenance (FAA definition) to manage contractor performance and to determine airworthiness of the aircraft?

A:   FAA has no oversight to FWP program.
Q: If there is no Director of Maintenance, who will manage contractor performance and determine airworthiness?

A:   Contract liaison.
Q: Will non-contract service providers be subject to the same performance evaluation and process?

A: Yes.
Q: What are the qualifications of the personnel that will evaluate the services performed? 
A: As stated on page 13, Section 4.2.
Q: If there is a disagreement on the evaluation, what is the procedure to dispute its contents? 

A: See page 22, Section 20.1.
Q: Who will be the ultimate arbiter in case of evaluation disputes/disagreements?

A:   See page 24, number 23.
Q: How long will evaluations be kept?

A: For the term of the contract.
Q: Who, exactly, will have access to these performance evaluations?

A: Public information.
Q: Page 13, 4.2 Agency Responsibilities, 6th Bullet. Please define “planned” and “major maintenance”. If there is a dollar parameter that defines major maintenance, please specify what that is and under which procurement method it applies?

A: Previously answered; see number 13.
Q: How will this maintenance be quoted? 
A: Same as above.
Q: Often parts/assemblies that can potentially be considered “major” must be sent to one of few qualified places in the country that can inspect those parts/assemblies and provide an approximation of cost. How will this work (i.e. maintenance on an engine may be $50,000 or $150,000), is the contractor required to provide his/her best guess and then be liable for the difference?

A: All work will follow the procurement laws and procedures.
Q: Page 14, 4.4.1 References. Bidders are to provide “references that are using services of the type proposed in this IFB”:  What type of services are specifically sought – any aircraft, any fixed wing, any twin engine, any helicopter, any MD Helicopter, any MD500 Helicopter, any Bell Helicopter, or any Bell OH58 helicopter?

A: Aircraft as stated on page 12 of the IFB.
Q: Page 14, 4.5 Contract Awards, “The State will award contracts to all qualified bidders.”

Do bidders have to have experience in all of the specified FWP aircraft to be considered “qualified”?

A: No, the contractor must be qualified to perform maintenance on the equipment.
Q: If a bidder has experience on a Piper Cub and receives a contract, and will therefore be on the approved list of service providers under contract, will that bidder be deemed eligible to work on the Partenavia or the MD500 or the OH58s? How will this be managed?

A: Yes a vendor who is qualified under this contract will be eligible to work on the aircraft specified by that vendor.

Q: Many, if not most, of the questions above also apply to Appendix A, Contract. In the interest of time and in order to reduce redundancy, the questions are applied to Sections 1-4 only, but are meant to also further clarify the Contract language. 

A:  The State agrees.

Q: In addition, for over a decade the following have been required by FWP contractors doing maintenance on their aircraft at significant cost to the contractor: Drug and Alcohol Test Program, Certified Repair Station or Service Center of Bell or MD, and a requirement to provide 24/7/365 emergency contact/response. Why are these items no longer required? 

A: Not required.

	22. 
	
	
	Q:
What if FWP sells or acquires another aircraft into their fleet?
A: An addendum can be made anytime during the contract period to delete or add an aircraft to FWP fleet during the term of the contract.

	23. 
	
	
	Q: Does the Contractor need to update FWP’s log books for each repair?   
A: Yes, the contractor will document the repairs in the aircraft’s log book and return the book to FWP upon completion of the repair. The aircraft logbooks are the property of FWP and will be provided to the Contractor at the time of work/maintenance. Contractor will complete log book entry at the time of work/maintenance and will return the log books to FWP at the time the work/maintenance is completed.

	24. 
	Contact
	22
	Q: Who is the contract Liasion for FWP?  Is the contract Liasion for FWP the main point of contract for maintenance scheduling, questions, disputes, meetings, and all correspondence with FWP?
A:  FWP’s contract liaison is the Chief Pilot.  The Chief Pilot will be the point of contact for all communication between the Contractor and FWP.

	25. 
	3.1
	17
	Q: Will the State assess liquidated damages for outstanding repairs?
A: Yes, the State may access liquidated damages.  Please see the revised wording in red:
· 
Contractor must give a written timeline of when scheduled maintenance or repair will be done at the time the aircraft is brought into the shop.  Any outstanding repairs that are complete after the timeline, the contractor will give a credit to FWP to cover actual costs to acquire a replacement aircraft. This may include daily rental fees for a replacement aircraft, and liquidated damages.   In the case of an unforeseen circumstance like backordered parts, other necessary repairs that cannot be completed on the aircraft, the contractor must obtain written approval from the chief pilot waiving the fee with the contractor. If this should happen a new timeline will established and be agreed upon by both parties.

	26. 
	4.5.1, 3.2, Contract 4.2
	
	Q: Please clarify section 4.5.1, 3.2 and 4.2 of the example contract.  Does FWP have to request a quote from multiple Contractors before using aircraft maintenance services?
A:   No, FWP may use any Contractor for any aircraft maintenance service as needed.
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